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董事長報告
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2017 年，世界經濟企穩向好，中國經濟保持平穩增長，澳門經濟持續回升並逐漸趨穩。面對複雜多變的經濟環境，澳門國際銀行
（以下簡稱“本行”） 緊密圍繞董事會制定的戰略規劃及決策部署，持續深化改革創新，積極謀求轉型升級，堅持以利潤爲中心、
轉型爲主線、創新爲動力，注重協同到位、措施到位、執行到位，取得了良好的經營業績。截至 2017 年末，存貸款餘額分別為
MOP1,302 億和 MOP1,033 億，實現稅後利潤 MOP13.50 億，資産質量持續保持優良，各項經營指標合規健康，綜合實力位列澳
門銀行業前列。

2017 年，本行把握“粵港澳大灣區”戰略機遇，積極籌備廣州分行順利開業並取得優秀業績；加强資本管理，力促次級債順利發
行進一步夯實資本基礎；與澳門日報共同舉辦第四十屆澳門十大新聞選舉，在社會引起熱烈反響；面對幾十年不遇的特大颱風襲擊，
積極組織義工團隊搶險救災、捐款捐物支持澳門災後重建；強化銀校合作，與澳門多家高校簽訂戰略協議並設立獎學金；組織員
工參加公益百萬行、愛心獻血、慈善捐款等活動，積極反哺社會，充分展現了本行的社會責任擔當及有愛心、有溫度的形象。

澳門國際銀行取得的成績離不開境內外政府、監管機構、廣大客戶和投資者、金融界同仁和社會各界人士的長期信任和鼎力支持。
在此，本人謹代表董事會向關心支持及推動本行發展的各界人士表示最誠摯的感謝。

2018 年，外部經營環境將更加錯綜複雜，本行將按照董事會的決策部署，堅持發展才是硬道理的理念，堅定全面深化改革轉型；
積極把握國家戰略機遇，深化泛珠三角和閩粵澳等區域合作，持續推進“北上西出”發展戰略；瞄準澳門特色金融發展定位，構
建多牌照經營體系實現創新發展和綜合經營。本行將持續爲澳門經濟多元化獻計獻力，為廣大客戶提供更加優質高效的服務，為
股東創造更大的價值，為員工提供更好的發展機會和福利待遇，為促進澳門金融體系的穩健發展做出更大貢獻！

呂耀明 
董事長

二零一八年三月二十二日       

董事長報告 Report Of The Directors
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董事長報告

董事長報告
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

During 2017, the global economy demonstrated steady performance with good momentum for growth. Economy of China in general 
maintained stable progress while that of Macao kept recovering gradually. Under a backdrop of complex and ever-changing economic 
environment, Luso International Banking Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) focused closely on the deployment of strategic plans 
and decisions formulated by the Board of Directors, and continuously deepened reform and innovation, strove vigorously for strategic 
transformation and upgrading, persistently adopted profit as the focus, transformation as the main theme and innovation as the driving force, 
and attached great importance to achieving satisfactory results through close cooperation and effective measures as well as strong power of 
execution. As a result, the Bank had attained admirable operating results. As at the end of 2017, deposit and loan balances stood at MOP130.2 
billion and MOP103.3 billion respectively, profit after tax was MOP1.35 billion. The Bank’s asset quality was maintained at a premium level and 
various business and operating indicators were sound and compliant with regulatory requirements. The competitive strength of the Bank as a 
whole managed to keep at top ranking in Macao’s banking industry.

In 2017, having seized the strategic opportunities brought about by “Guangdong-HongKong-Macau Great Bay Area”, the Bank achieved the 
successful opening of the Guangzhou Branch which had acquired remarkable business results during the year. The Bank also enhanced capital 
management and succeeded in the issuance of subordinated bonds which further consolidated the Bank’s capital base. In co-operating 
with the effort of Macao Daily News,  the “40th Macao’s Top Ten News Election” had aroused substantial positive response in the society. 
In coping with the seldom seen catastrophic Typhoon Hato that hit Macao last year, the Bank zealously organized volunteer staff teams to 
carry out emergency recovery activities and supported Macao’s post-disaster reconstruction projects via donating money and materials. In 
addition, the Bank bolstered cooperation with the universities in Macao by signing strategic agreements and establishing scholarships with 
various universities in Macao. The Bank also encouraged staff to participate in various philanthropic activities such as Macao’s “Walk for a 
Million”, blood donation and other charitable donations. Through endorsing a variety of social welfare projects, the Bank had demonstrated its 
determination to actively reward the society and conscientiously carry out social responsibilities.

The favorable results we scored in 2017 were attributable to the long-standing trust, tremendous and incessant support from the government 
and regulatory authority at home and abroad, as well as from our valued customers and investors, fellow bankers and the community at large. 
On behalf of the Board, I would like to express our heartfelt appreciation to all those who care and support our Bank’s business development. 

Looking forward to 2018, the external business environment will become more complicated. Nevertheless, the Bank will cling to the 
deployment and decisions of the Board, unswervingly stick to the concrete belief of continuous development, deepen transformation and 
reform in full scope, and proactively grasp China’s strategic opportunities, expand regional cooperation amongst the Pan-Pearl River Delta 
and Fujian, Guangdong and Macao, and consistently push ahead our developmental strategy in the Mainland China as well as other countries 
abroad. The Bank will also aim at constructing a multi-license business model to cope with the opportunities opened by Macao’s positioning 
of “characteristic finance”so as to achieve its objective of innovative development and integrated operation. The Bank will, as always, 
unremittingly strive to contribute to the diversification of Macao’s economy, provide our customers with optimal and efficient services, create 
greater and sustainable returns for our shareholders, render better benefits and further room for development to our employees, and work 
with great dedication to promote the sound and stable development of Macao’s financial system. 

Report Of The Directors

Lu Yao Ming
Chairman

22 March 2018

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017
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社會責任
 SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

熱心公益 團結互助  Commitment to Public Welfare and Mutual Assistance

2017.2.28

2017.8.26

39th 十大新聞選舉

積極參與災後重建工作

是次與澳門日報合辦之活動已進入第 39 個年頭，令這一文化傳承活動
得以發揚光大。每屆均向澳門日報讀者公益基金會捐款，積極參與社
會公益事業。
The “Awards Ceremony for the Top 10 News Elections” was held 
on 27th February. The popularity of such cultural event, which was 
co-organized with Macau Daily, has been growing steadily and has 
entered into its 39th year . The Bank also took this opportunity to 
participate further in social welfare by making donation to the Macao 
Daily Readers' Charity Foundation.

在“八二三”風災事件中向澳門工會聯合總會、澳門婦女聯合總會及
澳門街坊會聯合總會合共捐贈澳門幣 300,000，並組建義工隊積極投入
災後重建工作；同時，調配港幣 20 億額度，向受災市民及商戶提供低
息貸款資金援助，冀望為本澳重建略盡綿力。

A total of MOP300,000 was donated for the “8.23” typhoon incidents 
to the Macau Federation of Trade Unions, The Women's General 
Association of Macau, and the Macau Neighborhood Association. 
Meanwhile, a volunteer team of LIB was organized and actively 
participated in the post-disaster recovery work. At the same time, 
LIB had arranged a total of HKD2 billion low-interest loans in order 
to assist those affected people and businesses.

2017.6.9
「全員捐血日」活動

「全員捐血日」至 2017 年已成功舉辦超過二十餘屆，共計組織逾
600 名員工前往澳門捐血中心挽袖獻血，持續發揚“互助互愛，
捐血救人”精神。
The “LIB Employee Annual Blood Donation Day” activity was held 
on 9th of June. Such activity has been arranged by our Bank for 
over 20 years and a total of more than 600 employees had been 
organized to donate blood to the Macau Blood Donation Center.
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 社會責任
  SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

熱心公益 團結互助  Commitment to Public Welfare and Mutual Assistance

同根同生 培育人才  Cultivation of Local Talent

2017.12.13

2017.12

公益金百萬行

贊助獎學金

積極為澳門發展作出貢獻

公益金百萬行是本澳年度慈善盛事，澳門各界人士及群體均齊齊參
與，此屆，本行更是一如既往地支持本次善舉，以第一間捐款機構
的身份，帶頭捐助澳門幣 100,000，並組織三百多名員工隊伍參加
百萬行，身體力行為公益邁步，共襄盛舉。
As usual, LIB acted as the forerunner in Macau to make a 
donation of MOP100,000 to the “Walk For A Million” activity. LIB 
also organized more than 300 employees to join the “Walk For A 
Million” event on 13th of December so as to support the charity 
event with actual action.

與澳門大學、澳門科技大學及澳門城市大學簽署獎學金贊助協議並
達成合作共識。獎學金的捐贈將在 2017/2018 學年全面落實，總贊
助金額為澳門幣 620,000，為推動澳門教育事業發展做出貢獻。
In December 2017, LIB signed cooperation agreements with 
University of Macau, Macau University of Science and Technology, 
and City University of Macau for sponsoring scholarship to 
students of respective universities. The scholarship donation 
will be fully implemented during the 2017/2018 academic year, 
with a total sponsorship amount of MOP620,000 to promote the 
development of education in Macau.

每年依法繳納稅收數以千萬計，2017 年繳納逾 MOP1.35 億的稅款，
以支持澳門經濟長期繁榮穩定，為社會發展作出貢獻。

Substantial amount of taxes has been paid annually by the Bank and 
tax payment exceeding MOP135 million was made in 2017 so as to 
support the local economic development for the long run.
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 大事記
CHRONICLE OF EVENTS

2017.3.30
福建省張志南副省長一行、福建省投資開發集團有限責任公司嚴正董事長到
本行考察調研。
Mr Zhang Zhinan, the Executive Vice Governor of Fujian Province and his 
team, together with Mr Yan Zheng, the Chairman of the Board of Fujian 
Investment and Development Group Co., Ltd. visited LIB on 30th of March.

2017.5.5
福建省人民政府港澳事務辦公室王天明主仼一行到本行考察調研。
Mr Wang Tianming, the Director of the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs 
Office of the Fujian Provincial People’s Government and his team visited 
LIB on 5th of May.

2017.8.15
中華人民共和國駐澳門聯絡辦公室姚堅副主仼一行到本行考察調研。
Mr Yao Jian, the Deputy-Director of the Liaison Office of the Central People’s 
Government in the Macao SAR and his team visited LIB on 15th of August.

2017.4.12
廣州分行開業
澳門國際銀行廣州分行成功取得金融許可證和營業執照，
正式營業。
The Guangzhou Branch of Luso International Banking 
Limited had successfully obtained the financial and 
business license and officially opened for business on 
12th of April.
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 大事記

2017.12.14 起  校企簽署協議
逐步與澳門科技大學及澳門城市大學簽署戰略合作協議，冀能配合粵港澳大灣區及特色金融發展，為澳門及國家培育人才。
LIB signed Strategic Cooperation Agreements with Macau University of Science and Technology and City University of Macau 
on 14th of December, with focus on catering for the development of Guangdong-Hong Kong- Macao Greater Bay Area and 
Characteristic Finance, as well as cultivating talent in Macao and China.

2017.8.30  天鴿風災捐款
「天鴿」颱風災後，澳門國際銀行向婦聯、工聯和街總三個團體合計捐款澳門幣 300,000。

After the “8.23” typhoon incidents, LIB donated a total of MOP300,000 to The Women's General Association of Macau, 
Macau Federation of Trade Unions, and the Macau Neighborhood Association on 30th of August.

2017.12.14
發行次級債
澳門國際銀行成功完成美元 2.5 億的次級債發行。
LIB succeeded in issuing USD250 million of subordinated debt on 14th of 
December.

CHRONICLE OF EVENTS



公司簡介
PROFILE

Profile And Quality Policy公司簡介及品質政策

簡介
澳門國際銀行於 1974 年在澳門註冊成立， 1985 年成為中國第
一家中外合資銀行－－廈門國際銀行在澳門的附屬機構，2015
年完成增資擴股後成為以澳門資本為主體的澳門本土銀行，經
營一切商業銀行業務。40 餘年來，本行業務蒸蒸日上，發展迅
速。

作為澳門一家主要的商業銀行，本行目前擁有一支為數超過 
500 人之優秀員工隊伍，屬下十三間分行分佈澳門各區為廣大
市民服務，並以穩健經營、積極進取的方針和提供優質服務為
宗旨，努力為澳門發展做出貢獻。

2016 年，本行第一家中國內地營業性機構──廣州分行獲境內
外監管機構批准籌建，成為本行發展史上又一重要的里程碑。
未來本行將發揮廣州分行的優勢，在深耕澳門市場的基礎上，
努力拓展中國內地市場，服務粵澳經濟金融發展。

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報

Profile
Luso International Banking Limited (LIB) was incorporated 
in Macau in 1974.  In  1985,  LIB became the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Xiamen International Bank, the first 
joint-ventured bank in China. In 2015, LIB successfully 
completed the capital injection process and has become a 
truly local bank in terms of shareholdings and engages in 
all kinds of commercial banking business. LIB has attained 
steady and rapid growth in the last over four decades.

Being one of the major commercial banks in Macau, LIB has 
an elite work team of over 500 members, with 13 branches 
located at prime locations in the territory to serve the 
public. LIB is a prudent and active financial institution, and 
determined to provide high quality service, so as to contribute 
to the prosperity and development of Macau.

In 2016, our first business branch in mainland China, set up 
in Guangzhou was approved by competent authorities in the 
mainland and Macau respectively, marking another milestone 
in the development of LIB. In the future LIB will continue to 
focus on its business in Macau and at the same time bring 
the advantages of Guangzhou Branch into play to expand 
the mainland market, so as to promote the economic and 
financial development in Guangdong and Macau. 
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Financial Charts

FINANCIAL CHARTS
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總資產
Total Assets
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董事會報告
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

董事會報告
董事會謹將截至二零一七年十二月三十一日止年度的年報
和經審核財務報表呈覽。

Report of the directors
The directors have pleasure in presenting their report 
together with the audited financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2017.

儲備金
年內儲備變動詳情，載於財務報表之權益變動表。

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the bank during the year are 
set out in statement of changes in equity to the financial 
statements.

財務報表
本行截至二零一七年十二月三十一日止財政年度的溢利
和本行於該日的財務狀況載列於第 5 至第 35 頁的財務
報表內。

Financial statements
The results of the bank for the year ended 31 December 
2017 and the state of the bank’s affairs at that date are set 
out in the financial statements on pages 5 to 35.

主要業務
本行為持牌商業銀行，經營一般銀行業務及提供相關金
融服務。

Principal activities
The bank is a licensed commercial bank engaged in 
general banking business and the provision of related 
services.

分配
董事會將在股東週年大會中向股東建議截至二零一七年度
十二月三十一日止年度之溢利之分配辦法如下：

Appropriations
The directors recommend, subject to the approval of 
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting, the following appropriations in respect of the 
year ended 31 December 2017:

澳門幣

保留溢利 1,350,279,608
撥入法定儲備金 (270,055,922)
撥入普通儲備金 (675,139,804)
擬派股息 (405,083,882)

-

MOP

Profit for the year 1,350,279,608
Transfer to statutory reserve (270,055,922)
Transfer to general reserve  (675,139,804)
Proposed dividend (405,083,882)

-

董事會報告 Report Of The Directors

固定資產
固定資產的變動詳情載列於財務報表附註 19 內。

Property, plant and equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out 
in note 19 to the financial statements.

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報
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董事會報告
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

董事會
截至二零一七年末在任之十一名董事會成員為：

Directors
The 11 directors in office during the year of 2017 are as 
follows:

核數師
2017 年在羅兵咸永道會計師事務所任滿告退後，畢馬威會
計師事務所被任命為本行核數師。本年度財務報表經畢馬威
會計師事務所審核完畢。該核數師任滿告退，表示願意受聘
留任。

Auditors
KPMG were appointed as auditors of the Bank in 2017 
upon the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers. 
The financial statements have been audited by KPMG 
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

承董事會之命 On behalf of the Board of Directors

董事長 :
呂耀明 

Chairman and President:
Lu Yao Ming 

呂耀明
董事長

二零一八年三月二十二日 22 March 2018

Lu Yao Ming
Chairman

員工董事 :
馮浪平

Employee Director:
Fong Long Peng

獨立董事 :
崔世平
梁永本

執行董事 :
焦雲迪
陳偉成

Non-Executive Directors:
Chui Sai Peng Jose 
Leong Weng Pun

Executive Directors:
Jiao Yun Di
Chan Wai Shing

股東代表董事 :
翁若同
章德春
龐鴻
馬志剛
莊麗晶

Representative Directors of shareholders:
Weng Ruo Tong 
Zhang De Chun 
Pang Hong
Ma Chi Kong 
Jong Lai Ching 

Report Of The Directors

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017
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獨立核數師報告
致澳門國際銀行股份有限公司

全體股東
( 於澳門註冊成立的股份有限公司 )

我們審核了載於第 5 頁至第 35 頁的澳門國際銀行股份有限公司的財務報表，該財務報表由二零一七年十二月三十一日的資產
負債表以及截至該日止年度的損益表、權益變動表和現金流量表組成，亦包括重大會計政策的摘要和解釋附註。

銀行董事對財務報表的責任
銀行董事負有根據澳門特別行政區政府頒布的第 32/93/M 號法令及第 25/2005 號行政法規中《財務報告準則》編製及呈報財
務報表的責任。這些責任包括：設計、實施和維持適當的內部控制，以避免因舞弊或錯誤而導致在編製及呈報財務報表方面出
現重大誤報；選擇和運用適當的會計政策；按情況下作出合理的會計估計；以及保存適當和正確的會計紀錄。

核數師的責任
我們的責任是在根據我們的審核對上述財務報表發表意見，僅向銀行全體股東報告，除此之外本報告不可用作其他用途。我們
不會就本報告的內容向任何其他人士負上或承擔任何責任。

我們按照澳門特別行政區政府之《核數準則》和《核數實務準則》實施了核數工作，該準則要求核數師遵守有關職業道德的規
範，以及要求核數師計劃和實施核數工作，以合理確信財務報表是否不存在重大誤報。

核數工作包括實施適當的核數程序，以獲取支持財務報表內的金額及披露內容的核數證據。這些程序依據核數師的專業判斷來
作出選擇，包括對舞弊或錯誤而引致的財務報表存在重大誤報的風險所作的評估。在對這些風險作出評估時，核數師考慮了與
被審核實體財務報表的編製及呈報相關的內部控制，以便設計適當的核數程序，但並非為了對被審核實體內部控制的有效性發
表意見。核數工作亦包括評價銀行董事會所採用的會計政策的適當性和會計估計的合理性，以及評價財務報表的整體反映。

我們相信，我們已獲得了充分和適當的核數證據，為發表我們的核數意見提供了合理的基礎。 

核數意見 
我們認為，上述的財務報表符合澳門特別行政區政府頒布的第 32/93/M 號法令及第 25/2005 號行政法規中的《財務報告準則》，
在所有重要方面真實和公允地反映了澳門國際銀行股份有限公司於二零一七年十二月三十一日的財務狀況以及截至該日止年度
的經營結果和現金流量。

楊麗娟 - 註冊核數師
畢馬威會計師事務所

澳門
蘇亞利斯博士大馬路
中國銀行大廈
24 樓 B 及 C 座

二零一八年三月二十二日

獨立核數師報告致澳門國際銀行股份有限公司全體股東

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 

LUSO INTERNATIONAL BANKING LIMITED
(incorporated in Macao with limited liability by shares)

Ieong Lai Kun, Registered Auditor
KPMG

24th Floor, B & C
Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares
Macao

22 March 2018

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Luso International Banking Limited (“the Bank”) set out on 
pages 5 to 35, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the income statement, the statement of changes 
in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the requirements as set out in the Macao Financial System Act (Decree-Law No. 32/93/M) and the Financial Reporting 
Standards issued under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macao Special Administrative Region (“Macao 
SAR”).  This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining appropriate internal control relevant to the 
preparation and the presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances; and maintaining adequate and accurate accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  The report is made solely 
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.  We do not assume 
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards and Technical Standards of Auditing issued by the 
Macao SAR.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s professional judgement, including an assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Bank as 
at 31 December 2017 and of its profits and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements set out 
in Decree-Law No. 32/93M and the Financial Reporting Standards of the Macao SAR.

Independent Auditor's Report to The Shareholders of 
Luso International Banking Limited

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017
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損益表
INCOME STATEMENT

截至二零一七年十二月三十一日止年度
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

附註
Note

2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

利息收入 Interest income 4 4,134,185 3,056,627
利息支出 Interest expenses 4 (2,441,708) (1,715,771)
利息收入淨額 Net interest income 1,692,477 1,340,856

服務費及佣金收入 Fee and commission income 5 460,545 505,943
服務費及佣金支出 Fee and commission expenses 5 (49,628) (136,760)
服務費及佣金收入淨額 Net fee and commission income 410,917 369,183

股息收入 Dividend income 6 1,968 3,371
買賣交易淨 ( 虧損 )/ 溢利 Net trading (loss)/ gain 7 (214,434) 19,519
出售固定資產淨溢利 Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,886 5
出售證券投資淨溢利 Net gain on disposal of investment securities 186,493 236,465
其他經營收入 Other operating income 3,742 4,650
經營收入 Operating income 2,088,049 1,974,049

經營支出 Operating expenses 8 (435,193) (338,318)
中國大陸稅金及附加 Mainland China withholding tax (40,684) (66,194)
扣除減值準備前的經營溢利 Operating profit before provisions for bad and doubtful debts 1,612,172 1,569,537

客戶貸款和墊款減值損失 Provisions for bad and doubtful debts  9 (128,782) (272,245)
稅前溢利 Profit before taxation 1,483,390 1,297,292

所得稅 Taxation 10 (133,110) (133,555)
年度溢利 Profit for the year 1,350,280 1,163,737

股東應得溢利 Attributable to: Shareholders of the Bank 1,350,280 1,163,737

代表董事會通過並簽署 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
二零一八年三月二十二日 22 March 2018

呂耀明  ( 董事長 )
Lu Yao Ming (Chairman)

附註屬本財務報表的一部分。
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

焦雲迪  ( 總經理 )
Jiao Yun Di (General Manager)

損益表 Income Statement

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報



6資產負債表

資產負債表
BALANCE SHEET

於二零一七年十二月三十一日
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

呂耀明  ( 董事長 )
Lu Yao Ming (Chairman)

附註屬本財務報表的一部分。
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

焦雲迪  ( 總經理 )
Jiao Yun Di (General Manager)

附註
Note

2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

資產 Assets
現金及短期資金 Cash and short term funds 11 12,884,400 3,762,593
存放本地監管機構之存款 Deposits with local regulatory authority 12 2,248,856 2,908,270
存放中央銀行 Deposits with regulatory authority in Mainland China 881,721 -
存放銀行同業及其他金融機構 Due from banks and other financial institutions 13 3,644,594 5,167,572
買入返售金融資產 Financial assets purchased under agreements to resell 1,210,784 -
政府債券 Treasury bills 14 1,394,784 1,294,932
客戶貸款和墊款淨額 Loans and advances to customers 15 102,118,417 93,720,645
存款證 Certificates of deposits held 16 2,130,949 3,860,296
證券投資 Investments in securities 17 33,598,084 16,279,718
無形資産 Intangible asset 18 1,545 1,545
固定資產 Property, plant and equipment 19 80,881 67,805
租賃土地權益  Interest in leasehold land  20 47,067 48,538
遞延稅項資產 Deferred income tax asset 21 27,879 2,335
其他資産 Other assets 22 1,611,621 1,096,432
資產總值 Total assets 161,881,582 128,210,681

負債 Liabilities
銀行同業及其他金融機構之存款 Due to banks and other financial institutions 23 23,544,466 21,578,062
賣出回購金融資產 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 24 3,818,710 798,770
客戶存款 Customer deposits 25 121,311,046 96,365,907
其他負債 Other liabilities 26 1,690,773 1,045,795
應付債券 Subordinated liabilities 27 2,811,200 798,250
本期稅項負債 Current income tax liabilities 10(a) 175,893 143,346
負債總值 Total liabilities 153,352,088 120,730,130

權益 Equity
歸屬於股東之股本及儲備 Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders of the Bank
股本 Share capital 28 2,610,000 2,610,000
保留溢利 Retained earnings 1,350,280 1,163,737
其他儲備 Other reserves 4,569,214 3,706,814
股東權益 Shareholders' funds 8,529,494 7,480,551
負債及權益總值 Total liabilities and capital resources 161,881,582 128,210,681

代表董事會通過並簽署 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
二零一八年三月二十二日 22 March 2018

Balance Sheet

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017
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截至二零一七年十二月三十一日止年度
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

權益變動表
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

附註 股本 股本溢價 法定儲備金 普通儲備金 保留溢利 總額

Note Share
capital

Share
premium

Statutory
 reserve

General
 reserve

Retained
 earnings Total

MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
(Note i)

MOP'000
(Note ii)

MOP'000 MOP'000

於二零一六年一月一日 At 1 January 2016 2,610,000 1,771,859 487,983 783,595 663,377 6,316,814

自保留溢利轉撥至法定及
普通儲備金

Transfer from retained 
earnings to statutory and 
general reserves

- - 132,675 530,702 (663,377) -

本年度溢利 Profit for the year - -  - - 1,163,737 1,163,737
 

於二零一六年十二月三十一日
及二零一七年一月一日

At 31 December 2016 and  
1 January 2017

2,610,000 1,771,859 620,658 1,314,297 1,163,737 7,480,551

自保留溢利轉撥至法定及
普通儲備金

Transfer from retained 
earnings to statutory and 
general reserves

- - 232,747 581,869 (814,616) -

支付 2016 年普通股股息
2016 Dividend paid on 
ordinary shares

29 - - - - (349,121) (349,121)

外幣報表折算差異
Currency translation 
differences

- - - 47,784 - 47,784

本年度溢利 Profit for the year - -  - - 1,350,280 1,350,280

於二零一七年十二月三十一日 At 31 December 2017 2,610,000 1,771,859 853,405 1,943,950 1,350,280 8,529,494

附註 i / Note i :

法定儲備金為本行根據澳門銀行條例從每年所獲溢利中撥出金額設立之不可分配之儲備金。所撥出之金額不得少過上一年度除
稅後溢利百分之二十，直至儲備金額相等於本行已發行股本的百分之五十。此後，則從每年除稅後溢利中撥出百分之十，直至
儲備金額相等於本行之已發行股本爲止。
The statutory reserve is a non-distributable reserve set aside from profit each year in accordance with the Financial System 
Act of Macao which provides that an amount of not less than twenty percent of the previous year’s profit after taxation be 
set aside each year until the reserve fund reaches fifty percent of the Bank’s issued share capital and thereafter at least ten 
percent of the profit after taxation each year until the reserve fund equals to the Bank’s issued share capital.

附註 ii / Note ii :

每年所獲溢利經轉撥至法定儲備金及派發普通股股息後轉撥至普通儲備金。
The remaining balance of the profit for the year, after appropriation to the statutory reserve and distribution of dividend, 
are transferred to the general reserve in the following year.

Statement Of Changes In Equity權益變動表

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報

附註屬本財務報表的一部分。
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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截至二零一七年十二月三十一日止年度
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

現金流量表
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

附註
Note

2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

來自經營活動之現金流量 Cash flows from operating activities
- 稅前營業活動之現金流入 - Operating cash inflow before taxation 31(a) 19,438,583 9,256,027
- 已付澳門所得稅項 - Macao Complementary Tax paid (138,875) (38,687)
- 已付非澳門本地所得稅項 - Profit tax outside Macao paid (4,220) -

來自經營活動之現金流入淨額 Net cash inflow from operating activities 19,295,488 9,217,340

來自投資活動之現金流量 Cash flows from investing activities 
- 已收股息 - Dividend received 1,968 3,371
- 購買固定資產 - Purchase of property, plant and equipment (38,411) (26,016)
- 購買存款證 - Purchase of certificates of deposits held (5,850,831) (16,439,797)
- 購買政府債券 - Purchase of treasury bills (1,888,565) (1,790,008)
- 購買其他投資 - Purchase of other investments (28,482,340) (16,078,693)
- 出售政府債券 - Disposal of treasury bills 1,700,000 1,950,000
- 出售其他投資 - Disposal of other investments 12,515,684 4,848,360
- 出售存款證 - Disposal of certificates of deposits held 7,628,234 12,713,446

來自投資活動之現金流出淨額 Net cash outflow from investing activities (14,414,261) (14,819,337)

來自籌資活動之現金流量 Cash flows from financing activity
- 已付普通股股息 - Dividend paid (349,121) -
- 發行次級債 - Proceeds from subordinated note issued 2,012,950 -

來自籌資活動之現金流入淨額 Cash inflow from financing activity 1,663,829

現金及現金等價物增加 / ( 減少 ) 淨額 Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,545,056 (5,601,997)
年初現金及現金等價物 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 9,531,128 15,133,125
年末現金及現金等價物 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31(b) 16,076,184 9,531,128

Cash Flow Statement現金流量表

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017

附註屬本財務報表的一部分。
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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9財務報表附註

背景資料
General information
澳門國際銀行股份有限公司 ( 簡稱“本行”) 主要是在澳門從事一般銀行業務、金融業務及其他相關服務。
The principal activities of Luso International Banking Limited (the “Bank”) are the provision of banking, financial and 
other related services in Macao.  

本行為於澳門註冊成立的股份有限公司。註冊辦事處地址為澳門蘇亞利斯博士大馬路 47 號。
The Bank is a financial institution incorporated and domiciled in Macao. The address of its registered office is Avenida 
Dr. Mario Soares, No. 47, Macao.

該等財務報表已於二零一八年三月二十二日獲董事會批准刊發，董事會已任命呂耀明先生和焦雲迪先生在年度的財務報
表上簽署。
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2018, it was resolved 
that Mr. Lu Yao Ming and Mr. Jiao Yun Di be authorised by the Board to sign the financial statements. 

澳門國際銀行股份有限公司在中華人民共和國廣州市開設分行，於 2017 年 3 月開業。地址位於廣州市天河區珠江新城華
夏路 8 號合景國際金融廣場 1 層 104 房、35 層 3501 房。
Guangzhou Branch was opened in March 2017. The address of the office is Room 104, Floor 1 & Room 3501, Floor 35, 
International Finance Place, No.8 Huaxia Road, Pearl River New Town, Guangzhou, China.

主要會計政策 
Summary of significant accounting policies
用於編製本財務報表之主要會計政策詳列如下。除另外說明，有關政策已符合一致性採納於本財務報表所列示之財務期間內。
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all years presented.

編製基準
Basis of preparation

本行財務報表乃根據澳門特別行政區於二零零五年十二月九日頒佈的第 25/2005 號行政法規所載的財務報告準則 ( 下稱 
【澳門財務報告準則】 ) 編製。
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards issued by 
the Government of Macao Special Administrative Region under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 on 9 December 
2005 (“MFRS”). 

除交易性投資外 [ 附註 2 (i)] , 財務報表乃按歷史成本法編製。
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments held for 
trading (Note 2(i)) which is carried at lower of amortised cost and market value. 

根據 【澳門財務報告準則】要求， 編製財務報表的部分基礎須使用若干關鍵會計估計。同時亦要求銀行董事對本行應用
的會計政策之合適性作出判斷。相關涉及較高程度之判斷或複雜的關鍵假設及會計估計已載於附註 3。 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates.  It also requires Board of Directors to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s 
accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions 
and estimates that are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

收入之確認 
Revenue recognition

利息收入
Interest income

利息收入均按照實際利率法確認在損益帳內。貸款發生減值時，該貸款賬面價值減記至按該貸款原實際利率折現確定的
預計未來現金流量現值餘額，並繼續按實際利率法確認利息收入。已減值貸款的利息收入，按確定減值損失時對未來現
金流量進行折現採用的折現率作為利率進行計算。

a.

b.

(i) 

01

02

Notes To The Financial Statements

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報
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(i) 

主要會計政策 ( 續 )
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
收入之確認 ( 續 ) 
Revenue recognition (Continued)

利息收入 ( 續 )
Interest income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.  When a loan receivable 
is impaired, the Bank reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow 
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest 
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

服務費及佣金收入
Fee and commission income and expenses

服務費及佣金收入一般於服務提供期間以應計方式確認。
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided. 

財富管理費和客戶證券業務買賣、基金投資、保險及其他代理業務所收取之佣金於提供服務期間確認。
Wealth management fees and commissions received from customers on securities trading, unit trust investments, 
insurance and other agency services provided are recognised rateably over the period during which the service is provided. 

股息收入
Dividend income

於收取股息的權利確立時確認。
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

股票 / 外匯掛勾之債券及沽出期權收入
Income on equity, currency linked debt securities and options written 

為對沖客戶股票 / 外匯投資而購入之股票 / 外匯掛勾債券的票面利息包含兩種元素：(1) 內在債券利息及 (2) 銀行所賣出內
嵌的認沽期權金。債券的內在利息是按同等貨幣、相約期限及金額的香港同業拆息計算並確認於損益表內。期權金收益
是以債券的票面息率與內在息率的差異計算，期權金收益將按債券期限於損益表中 “財資業務及買賣投資淨收益”項目
內攤銷。
Coupon interest on equity/currency linked debt securities purchased to hedge equity/ currency linked investments 
includes two elements: (1) interest on the host debt securities; and (2) premium received for the embedded put option 
written by the Bank. Interest income on the host debt securities is estimated and recognised in the income statement 
as interest income by reference to the interbank borrowing rate of the same currency, similar tenor and amounts.  The 
premium received is calculated as the difference between the coupon interest rate and the estimated interest income 
on the host debt securities. The premium received is amortised to the income statement as “Net gain arising from 
other treasury and trading operations” under net trading income over the tenor of the debt securities.

用作為對沖客戶股票 / 外匯存款而獨立賣出的認沽期權金收益將按期權合約的期限於損益表中的“財資業務及買賣投資
淨收益”項目中攤銷。
Premium received on stand alone options written to hedge equity/currency linked customer deposits is amortised to 
the income statement as “Net gain arising from other treasury and trading operations” under net trading income over 
the tenor of the options. 

股票 / 外匯掛勾之客戶投資費用
Expenses on equity/currency linked investments

支付予客戶股票 / 外匯掛勾投資的票面利息包含兩種元素：(1) 內在定期存款利息及 (2) 客戶所賣出內嵌的認沽期權金。
內在定期利息支出是按一般香港銀行所提供的同等貨幣，相約期限及金額的定期存款利率作計算。支付客戶的期權金是
該掛勾存款票面息率與內在定期存款息率的差額計算。期權金支出按投資合約期限於損益表中 “財資業務及買賣投資淨
收益”項目內攤銷。
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b.

(iii) 

(iv) 

c.

(ii) 

Notes To The Financial Statements
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股票 / 外匯掛勾之客戶投資費用 ( 續 )
Expenses on equity/currency linked investments (Continued)

Coupon interest paid on equity/currency linked customer investments includes two elements: (1) interest on the 
host fixed deposits; and (2) premium payable for the embedded put option written by the customer. Interest expense 
on the host fixed deposits is estimated and recognised in the income statement by reference to the market interest 
rate offered by banks in Hong Kong for fixed deposits of the same currency, similar tenor and amounts.  The option 
premium payable is calculated as the difference between the coupon interest rate and the estimated interest expense 
on the host fixed deposits.  The option premium payable is amortised to the income statement as “Net gain arising 
from other treasury and trading operations” under net trading income over the tenor of the investments. 

呆壞帳準備金
Provision for bad and doubtful debts

本行內設有五級貸款分類系統，參照對借款人的還款能力及本金及 / 或利息收回的可能性之評估作為貸款分類的基礎。
同時亦會考慮本金及 / 或利息逾期償還的情況。
The Bank internally classifies loans and advances to customers into five categories largely based on an assessment of 
the borrower’s capacity to repay and on the degree of doubt about the collectability of interest and/or principal.  The 
periods that payments of interest and/or principal have been overdue are also taken into account when classifying 
loans and advances.

董事根據對貸款本金或利息最終能否收回的評估而在有關的基礎上增提準備金。特別準備金是遵循“澳門金融管理局”
有關貸款呆壞帳撥備的要求而提取，並根據上述貸款分類，董事對有關貸款的潛在損失進行評估，然後將貸款餘額減除
抵押品價值後的淨收回價值列帳。
Provisions are made against specific advances to customers as and when the directors have doubts on the ultimate 
recoverability of principal or interest in full.  Specific provision is made with reference to the requirements of AMCM 
and the abovementioned classification of advances to reduce the carrying value of each of the loans and advances to 
the expected net realisable value based on directors’ assessment of the potential losses on those identified loans and 
advances.

除特定準備金外，本銀行亦會提撥貸款一般準備金。特定及一般準備金會從資產負債表中的“客戶貸款及放款”結餘中
扣除。 對於收回無望之貸款，有關貸款餘額將根據銀行董事之批准予以撇帳。
In addition, amounts have been set aside as a general provision for loans and advances to customers and certain off-
balance sheet guarantee items with reference to the requirements of AMCM. Both specific and general provisions 
are deducted from “Loans and advances to customers” in the balance sheet. When there is no realistic prospect of 
recovery, the outstanding debt is written off upon the approval from Board of Directors has been obtained.  

外幣折算
Foreign currencies

功能及呈列貨幣
Functional and presentation currency

財務報表中所載項目乃採用本行經營的主要經濟環境中所使用的貨幣（功能貨幣）計量。本行的財務報表以澳門幣作為
呈列貨幣，即澳門幣為本行的功能及呈列貨幣。
Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Bank operates (“the functional currency”).  The financial statements are presented in Macao 
Official Patacas (“MOP”), which is the Bank’s presentation currency and functional currency.

d.

02

e.

(i) 

主要會計政策 ( 續 )
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

c.

Notes To The Financial Statements
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e.

(ii) 

(iii) 

主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
外幣折算 ( 續 )
Foreign currencies (Continued)

交易及結餘
Transactions and balances

外幣交易均按交易當日的匯率折算為功能貨幣。結算有關交易及按年終匯率換算以外幣計值的貨幣資產與負債產生的匯
兌收益及虧損均於收益表確認。
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions.  Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are recognised in the income statement.

非澳門本地經營產生的折算差異
Overseas operation translation

對非澳門本地經營的財務報表進行折算時，利潤表中的項目採用交易發生日的即期匯率的近似匯率折算為澳門元。資產
負債表中的資產和負債項目，採用資產負債表日的即期匯率折算為澳門元。按照上述折算產生的外幣財務報表折算差異，
均在資產負債表中所有者權益下的普通儲備金中確認。當處置非澳門本地經營業務時，相關的外幣財務報表折算差額自
所有者權益均轉入當期處置損益。
The results of an overseas operation are translated into MOP at the exchange rates approximating the foreign 
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statements of financial position items are translated into 
MOP at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are 
recognised in the general reserve of equity. On disposal of an overseas operation, the cumulative amount of the 
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to the income statement when the 
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

固定資產
Property, plant and equipment

固定資產按成本減累計折舊及減值列帳。
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.  

倘租賃物業之土地及房產兩部分之成本能於租賃訂立時可靠地分配，租賃土地部分會列作經營租賃。就租賃土地所付的
溢價金或其他付款，按直線法於租期內在收益表支銷。 租賃土地如須減值 , 有關減值損失亦會於收益表支銷。
Where the land and building elements of the leasehold properties can be allocated reliably at the inception of the 
lease, the land element is accounted for as an operating lease. Leasehold land premiums for acquiring the land leases, 
or other lease payments, are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or 
where there is impairment, the impairment loss is charged to the income statement.  

僅在與該項資產相關之未來經濟效益有可能歸於本行及可靠地計算出項目成本之情況下，其後成本會包括於資產帳面值
或確認為另立之資產 ( 如適用 )； 而替換部分的帳面值則自相關資產撇除。所有其他維修費及保養費於其產生的財務期內
於收益表支銷。
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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f.
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主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
固定資產 ( 續 )
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

資産之剩餘價值及可使用年限已於每個資産負債表日審閱，並已於適當情況下作出調整。
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

倘某資產帳面值大於其估計可收回金額時，則該資產的帳面值將即時減值至其可收回金額。
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

出售資產之收益或虧損指出售所得淨額與相關資產帳面值之差額，並列入損益表帳內。
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount, and are included 
in the income statement.

政府債券
Treasury bills

政府債券為“澳門金融管理局”發行有到期日及本行有明確意向及有能力持至到期日之債券。此類債券乃按成本值減除
非短期性跌價準備列帳，並就購買時之溢價或折讓按贖回年期作出攤銷而調整。 購入的政府債券按照實際利率法所產生
之收入列作利息收入項目。
Treasury bills are debt securities issued by AMCM which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.  
Treasury bills are stated at cost adjusted for the amortisation of discounts arising on acquisition over the periods to 
maturity, less provision for other than temporary diminution in value. Interest earned on treasury bills is reported as 
interest income using effective interest method.

存款證
Certificates of deposits held

存款證為非上市證券。對於本行有明確意向及有能力持至到期日之存款證按下述持至到期投資的會計政策處理。其餘之
存款證按下述其他投資的會計政策處理。 購入的存款證所產生之收入按照實際利率法列作利息收入項目。
Certificates of deposits (“CD”) held are unlisted debt investments. The certificate of deposit held which the Bank has 
the intention and ability to hold to maturity are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy for held-to-
maturity investments as stated below. The remaining certificates of deposits held are accounted for in accordance 
with accounting policy for other investments as stated below.  Interest earned on certificates of deposits held is 
reported as interest income using effective interest method.

g.

h.

f.

Notes To The Financial Statements

固定資產的折舊是以直線法按下述估計可使用期限，將其成本攤銷至其預計剩餘價值：
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to 
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

永久業權土地 Freehold land 無須折舊 Not depreciated

租賃土地及樓宇 Leasehold land and buildings 50 年 50 years

傢俬、裝修及辦事處設備 Fixtures and furniture 5 至 6 年 5 to 6 years

電腦設備 - 硬件 Computer equipment - hardware 4 年 4 years

電腦設備 - 軟件 Computer equipment - software 3 年 3 years

汽車 Motor vehicles 5 年 5 years

02
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其他投資 
Other investments

其他投資是指不被列作持至到期或持作買賣的投資。 其他投資按成本值減除非短期性跌價準備列帳，購買時之溢價或折
讓按贖回年期作出攤銷而調整。若本行預期不可收回所有帳面值，將會提撥跌價準備並於損益帳內支銷。購入的其他投
資產生之溢價或折讓之攤銷按照實際利率法列作利息收入項目。
Other investments represent investments other than held-to-maturity and held for trading purposes. Other 
investments are stated at cost, and adjusted for the amortisation of premiums or discounts arising on acquisition 
over the periods to maturity, less provision for other than temporary diminution in value. Provisions are made for 
the amount of the carrying value which the Bank does not expect to recover and are recognised as an expense in the 
income statement as they arise. The amortisation of premiums and discounts arising on acquisition of debt securities 
is included as part of interest income using effective interest method. 

j.

(iii) 

當期及遞延稅項
Current and deferred income tax

所得稅費用包括當期及遞延稅項。除了將與直接計入股東權益的交易或者事項有關的所得稅影響計入股東權益外，當期
所得稅費用和遞延所得稅變動計入當期損益。
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.  In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

02

持作買賣投資 
Investments held for trading

持作買賣投資包括股票及債務證券，指為了從價格或回報率的短期波動所賺取的溢利而購入之投資。持作買賣的股票及
債務證券投資按成本值或結算日市值兩者中較低者列帳。為持作買賣投資市價低於帳面值之差額所作的未實現虧損會於
損益表內反映，並列入 " 財資業務及買賣投資淨損益 " 項下。（附註 7)
Investments held for trading include equity securities and debt securities which are acquired for the purpose of 
generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or yield enhancement.  Investments in trading shares and 
debt securities are stated at the lower of amortised cost and market value at the balance sheet date.  Any unrealised 
losses from writing down the investments to market value are recognised in the income statement and included as 
"Net gain/ (loss) arising from other treasury and trading operations" (Note 7). 

(ii) 

投資
Investments in securities

i.

Notes To The Financial Statements

持至到期投資  
Held-to-maturity investments

持至到期投資包括債務證券，指本行有明確意向及有能力持至到期日之債務證券投資。 持有上市及非上市債務證券按成
本值減除非短期性跌價準備列帳，並就購買時之溢價或折讓按贖回年期作出攤銷而調整。 若本行預期不可收回所有帳面
值，將會提撥跌價準備並於損益帳內支銷。 購入的債務證券產生之溢價或折讓之攤銷按照實際利率法列作利息收入項目。
Held-to-maturity investments include debt securities for which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold 
to maturity. Investments in listed and unlisted debt securities are stated at cost adjusted for the amortisation of 
premiums or discounts arising on acquisition over the periods to maturity, less provision for other than temporary 
diminution in value. Provisions are made for the amount of the carrying value which the Bank does not expect to 
recover and are recognised as an expense in the income statement as they arise. The amortisation of premiums 
and discounts arising on acquisition of these securities is included as part of interest income using effective interest 
method.

(i) 

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017



財務報表附註
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15財務報表附註

主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

02

當期及遞延稅項 ( 續 )
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

本行的當期稅項支出是採用澳門及廣州 ( 為本行所處的經營地及應課稅收入的來源地 ) 在結算日前已頒佈或實質頒佈之課
稅率計算。銀行董事會定期對詮釋存在意見不一的稅務條例而導致須繳付額外稅款的可能性作出評估。如有需要，會就
預計須支付的稅款，作出撥備。
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date in Macao and Guangzhou where the Bank operates and generates taxable income. Board of 
Directors periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 
to be paid to the tax authorities. 

遞延稅項採用負債法就資產負債之稅基與其在財務報表之帳面值之短暫時差作全數撥備。 遞延稅項需在遞延稅項資產或
負債確立後計算並採用在結算日前已頒佈或實質頒佈之課稅率釐定。
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.  Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is 
settled.

遞延稅項資產乃就未來可能出現之應課稅溢利與可動用之短暫時差抵銷而確認。
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

經營性租賃
Operating leases

出租人如持有該資產所得之絕大部份風險及回報的租約屬營業性租賃。就經營性租賃作出的付款（扣除出租人給予的任
何優惠）按直線法於租期內在收益表支銷。 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are expensed 
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

k.

l.

m.

j.

Notes To The Financial Statements

無形資産
Intangible asset

無形資産項下爲一間壽命不確定的高爾夫球會會籍，按購買成本減累計減值虧損計量。
Intangible asset represents a club debenture held in a golf club with indefinite useful life and is stated at purchase cost 
less accumulated impairment losses.   

撥備 
Provisions 

倘本行須就過去事項承擔現有法律或推定責任，而有可能導致有經濟利益的資源流出以履行該責任，並能可靠地估計相
關金額，本行會為此責任確認撥備。未來經營虧損不會予以撥備確認。
Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it 
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be 
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

如出現多項類似責任，銀行董事會以同類責任的整體性釐定其會否導致有經濟利益的資源流出以履行責任。即使同類別
責任中任何一項可能導致有經濟利益的資源流出的機會不大，仍會確認撥備。
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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現金及現金等價物
Cash and cash equivalents

就編製現金流量表而言，現金及現金等價物包括自購入日期起三個月內到期的結餘，包括現金、存放銀行同業及其他金
融機構及政府債券。 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three 
months' maturity from the date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions and 
treasury bills.

主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

02

買入返售及賣出回購金融資產
Financial assets purchased or sold under repurchase agreements

賣出回購金融資產是指本行按回購協議先賣出再按固定日期和價格進行回購的債券所融入的資金。由於本行仍保留債券
的主要風險和收益，因此賣出回購對應的債券仍在資產負債表中予以確認。 對於交易對手的債務在“賣出回購金融資產”
中列示，相應債券作為該債務之抵押。協議期間債券之所有權轉至交易對手，交易對手並無出售或再抵押之限制。 該類
債券在資產負債表中以攤余成本列示。
Financial assets sold subject to repurchase agreements represented the debt securities classified as other investments 
that were transferred to an entity with terms to repurchase these debt securities at agreed dates and prices.  As the 
Bank has retained substantially all the risks and rewards relating to these debt securities, the full carrying amount of 
these debt securities continued to be recognised.  The cash received on the transfer was reported as liabilities under 
“Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements”.  The transferred debt securities serve as collateral to secure 
these liabilities.  During the covered period, the legal title of the debt securities is transferred to the counterparty entity 
and there is no restriction for the counterparty to sell or repledge the collateral.  These debt securities are measured at 
amortised cost in the balance sheet.

根據轉售協定購買的資產（買入返售協議）不是作為資產購買，而是作為交易對手的應收賬款，並以攤余成本列入資產
負債表內。
Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase agreements) are reported not as purchases of the 
assets, but as receivables from the counterparties and are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised 
cost.

賣出回購或買入返售金融資產的利息支出和利息收入在相關交易期間以實際利率法攤銷。 
Interest earned on financial assets purchased or sold under repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income 
and interest expense respectively, over the life of each agreement using the effective interest method. 

衍生金融工具
Derivative financial instruments

衍生金融工具包括由本行在外匯、利率、股票及其他市場進行期貨、遠期、期權及掉期交易而產生的衍生工具。 此等金
融工具的會計處理要視乎交易用作買賣用途或對沖風險而定。
Derivative financial instruments include derivatives, such as forwards, swaps, options and other transactions 
undertaken by the Bank in the foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and other markets. The accounting for these 
instruments is dependent upon whether the transactions are undertaken for trading purposes or to hedge risk.

本行每當進行一筆衍生工具合約交易的時候，本行會決定相當的衍生工具交易為對沖目的。 要使該等衍生工具符合對沖
用途，該衍生工具必須在合約成立時能有效地減低現有或預期相關資產或負債因價格或利率變動所引致的市場風險。衍
生工具用作減低因與客戶交易所引起的市場風險亦歸入對沖交易。用作對沖的交易是以其對沖的資產、負債或持倉淨額
以相同之基準計值。 任何損益均以相關資產、負債或持倉淨額所引起損益的相同基準確認。
On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Bank may designate certain derivative transactions as hedges.  
To qualify as a hedging transaction, a derivative transaction must be effective in reducing the market risk of existing 
or anticipated exposures to a change in market rates or prices. Derivative transactions entered into to reduce market 
risk of customer driven transactions are also regarded as hedging transactions.  Transactions designated as hedges 
are valued on an equivalent basis to the assets, liabilities or net positions that they are hedging.  Any profit or loss 
is recognised in the income statement on the same basis as that arising from the related assets, liabilities or net 
positions.

o.

p.

n.

Notes To The Financial Statements
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衍生金融工具 ( 續 ) 
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

若衍生金融工具並不符合上述有關對沖風險的要求，該衍生金融工具會被視作買賣用途。衍生金融工具按公允價值確認，
並於報告期末重新計算公允價值。未變現之盈利將確認在其他資產內而未變現之虧損將確認在其他負債內。
If a derivative financial instrument does not meet the criteria for a hedge set out above, the derivative financial 
instrument is deemed to be held for trading purposes. Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair 
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. Unrealised gains on such transactions are 
included in “Other assets” whereas unrealised losses on such transactions are included in “Other liabilities”.

資產減值
Impairment of assets

未能確定可使用年期之資產不會予以攤銷，而於每年檢視其減值。如因某些事故或情況改變而顯示帳面值未能收回，銀
行董事會對其減值需要作出評估。同樣地，如因某些事故或情況改變而顯示帳面值未能收回，予以攤銷之資產亦需評估
其減值。若資產之帳面值超過其可收回價值，其部分將被確認為減值損失。可收回價值指該資產之公允價值減去變賣成
本及其使用價值之較高者。在評估減值時，資產會在最低層次上歸類，且有獨立可確認之現金流量 ( 現金產生單位 )。
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment and 
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable.  Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

應付債券 
Subordinated liabilities

應付債券以公允價值初始計量，相關交易費用在其到期期限內進行攤銷。利息支出按照實際利率法列作利息支出項目。
Subordinated liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. The transaction cost in relation to the issuance of 
subordinated liabilities is amortised to the income statement over its expected maturity terms. The related interest 
expense is recognised, using the effective interest method, within “interest expense” in the income statement.

職工薪酬  
Employee benefits 

定額供款計劃，指本行根據協議規定向公共養老保險計劃供款，除此以外本行並無其他付款義務。相關供款在到期時確
認為職工薪酬。上述繳納的費用按照權責發生制原則計入當期損益。
For defined contribution plan, the Bank pays contributions to publicly administered pension insurance plans on 
a contractual basis. The Bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The 
contributions are recongised as employee benefit expense when they are due. 

股息分派
Dividend

於結算日後才建議或宣佈派發之股息應披露為結算日後事項，並不會在結算日時確認為負債。
Dividends proposed or declared after the balance sheet date are disclosed as a post balance sheet event and not 
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

q.

r.

s.

t.

主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

02
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主要會計政策 ( 續 ) 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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重要會計評估及假設
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

03

a.

b.

c.

所得稅
Income taxes 

本行須繳納多個司法權區之所得稅，決定本行於世界各地的所得稅撥備時，須作出重大評估。在日常業務中有若干交易
及計算的最終稅項存在不確定性。本行預計稅務確認負債時是根據有否額外稅項到期之評估。倘最終稅務結果與入帳款
不同，差額將影響作出決定期間所得稅及遞延稅項撥備。
The Bank is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining 
the Bank’s provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax 
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Bank recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters 
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

貸款呆壞帳準備金
Provision for loans and advances 

銀行董事會對為貸款組合設立的特別及一般準備金作出定期評估。準備金的提撥是參考“澳門金融管理局”對有關貸款
呆壞帳撥備的要求及董事對有關貸款的潛在損失進行評估之貸款分類結果而釐定。當董事對貸款回收抱有懷疑又不能全
面掌握有關客戶的財務狀況資料時，董事會於年底作出判斷以估計所需之撥備。如最終回收之金額與估計收回之金額有
差異，差額及相應稅項費用會於下一年度的財務報表中反映。
The Bank periodically reviews its loan portfolios to assess the existing specific and general provisioning level.  In 
determining whether a provision for loans and advances to customers should be recorded, the Bank makes reference 
to the requirements of AMCM and the classification of loans and advances which is based on the directors’ 
assessment of the potential losses on those identified loans and advances. Where the recoverability of a loan is 
considered doubtful by the directors but full information of the borrower’s financial situation is not available, the 
directors will exercise their judgement to estimate the amount of provision required against the loan at the year end. 
Any changes in estimates of the provision at any time during the life of the loan will be reflected in the current year 
financial statements with the consequential tax expense impact.

持作買賣投資之公允價
Market value of trading investments

根據本行的會計政策，內含權期合約而持作買賣之投資是以成本與公允價的低者計量。此類持作買賣而沒有活躍市場成
交的投資是以交易對手報價或內部模型作為估值基礎。持作買賣投資之公允價估值涉及若干參數假設，參數的假設可能
對持作買賣投資之公允價估值有重大影響。
Investments in trading debt securities with embedded options are, in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policies, 
stated at the lower of cost and market value.  The market values of such trading investments which are not traded in 
an active market are estimated based on either the brokers’ quotations or internal model. The determination of fair 
values of those trading investments involves certain parameters input. Assumptions of those parameters could have 
material impact of the estimated values of those investments.

本行就下個財政年度導致資產及負債帳面值作出評估及假設，評估及判斷不斷按過往經驗及其他因素評核並以此為基準，
包括相信於有關情況屬合理的日後事項預期。
The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year.  Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Notes To The Financial Statements
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利息收入淨額
Net interest income 

服務費及佣金收入淨額
Net fee and commission income 

04

05

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

利息收入 Interest income
客戶貸款及墊款 Loans and advances to customers 2,946,815 2,558,440
存放本地監管機構之存款 Deposits with local regulatory authority 167 108
存放中國大陸中央銀行 Deposits with regulatory authority in Mainland China 6,404 -
存放銀行同業及其他金融機構 Due from banks and other financial institutions 171,491 21,741
政府債券 Treasury bills 11,748 8,820
證券投資 Investments in securities 997,560 467,518

4,134,185 3,056,627

利息支出 Interest expenses
銀行同業及其他金融機構之存款 Due to banks and other financial institutions 531,233 326,279
賣出回購金融資產 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 43,140 12,502
客戶存款 Customer deposits 1,818,408 1,327,785
其他 Others 48,927 49,205

2,441,708 1,715,771

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

服務費及佣金收入 Fee and commission income
貸款及墊款 Loans and advances 101,918 73,202
信用卡 Credit cards 68,035 170,264
匯款 Remittances 2,966 3,748
保險及其他代理業務佣金 Insurance and other agency commission 91,701 77,834
自動櫃員機 Automated teller machines 5,577 4,525
基金 Unit trusts 227 109
證券買賣 Securities trading 12,412 8,659
安排費 - 廈門國際銀行股份有限公司發行
之存款證

Arrangement fee - CDs issued by Xiamen International 
Bank Co. Ltd. 11,567 11,995

財務顧問費 Financial consultancy fees 158,738 145,083
其他 Others 7,404 10,524

460,545 505,943

服務費及佣金支出 Fee and commission expenses
信用卡 Credit cards 43,033 128,906
其他 Others 6,595 7,854

49,628 136,760
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股息收入
Dividend income

買賣交易凈（虧損）/ 溢利
Net trading (loss)/ gain

經營支出
Operating expenses

06

07

08

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

非上市股票 Unlisted shares 721 721
上市股票 Listed shares 1,247 2,650

1,968 3,371

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

外匯買賣淨（虧損）/ 溢利 Net (loss)/ gain arising from dealings in foreign currencies (64,199) 15,351
資金掉期業務及交易賬投資（虧損）/
溢利

Net (loss)/ gain arising from other treasury and trading 
operations (150,235) 4,168

(214,434) 19,519  

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

人事費用（包括董事薪酬） Staff costs (including directors remuneration) 282,957 220,665
房地產費用 Property costs

- 集團公司物業租金 - Rental of premises from group companies 1,328 1,309
- 其他租金支出 - Other rental of premises 22,204 9,711
- 其他房地産費用 - Other property costs 5,055 1,992

業務推廣費用 Advertising and promotion expenses 22,925 17,947
支付控股公司管理費 Management fee paid to holding company 9,270 9,270
電腦費用 Computer expenses 10,058 8,925
固定資產折舊 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 23,195 17,662
租賃土地權益攤銷 Amortisation of interests in leasehold land 1,471 1,471
文具印刷費 Printing and stationery expenses 2,005 1,732
守護費 Security services charges 5,344 6,547
維修費 Maintenance and repairs expenses 2,399 2,519
資訊費 Information services charges 5,326 4,796
信用卡費 Credit card operating expenses 4,959 3,500
水電費 Electricity and water 3,192 2,842
自動櫃員機費 Automatic teller machine operating expenses 4,682 3,456
存款保障基金供款 Deposit Protection Fund Payment 6,678 5,552
其他費用 Others 22,145 18,422

435,193 338,318
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客戶貸款和墊款減值損失
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

09

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

客戶貸款和墊款減值準備計提 Provisions for loans and advances to customers
特定準備金增加 ( 附註 15) Increase in specific provision (note 15) (36,182) (50,576)
一般準備金增加 ( 附註 15) Increase in general provision (note 15) (92,600) (221,669)
準備金計提至損益表 ( 附註 15) Net charge to income statement (note 15) (128,782) (272,245)

稅項
Taxation

10

現有稅項主要包括澳門所得補充稅。根據澳門所得補充稅法律，澳門所得補充稅稅制為對應課稅收益超過澳門幣 32,000
元但低於澳門幣 300,000 元的部份徵收 3% 至 9% 的遞進稅率，對於課稅收益超過澳門幣 300,000 元的部份徵收 12% 固
定稅率。在二零一六年度和二零一七年度，澳門所得補充稅特別稅務優惠，應課稅豁免收益提高至澳門幣 600,000 元，
而之後之課稅收益徵收 12% 固定稅率。在澳門境外的稅收是按照相關地區適用的現行稅率計算。
Current tax is primarily comprised of Macao Complementary Tax. According to Macao Complementary Tax Law, Macao 
Complementary Tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to 9% on taxable income above MOP32,000 but 
below MOP300,000, and thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years 2016 and 2017, the special tax incentive was 
provided to effect that the tax free income threshold is increased to MOP600,000 and the profit thereafter being taxed 
at a fixed rate of 12%. The provision of taxation outside Macao is provided at the appropriate current rates of taxation 
ruling in the region in which the relevant unit of the Bank operates.

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

澳門所得稅 Macao Complementary Tax 
本年度準備  ( 附註 a) Current income tax charge for the year (Note a) 185,404 166,344
遞延稅項 ( 附註 21) Deferred income tax (Note 21) (2,581) (2,544)

182,823 163,800

非澳門稅務損失之遞延稅項 ( 附註 21)
Deferred income tax on tax losses outside Macao 
(Note 21)

(22,963) -

中國大陸利息收入預提稅 ( 附註 b) Mainland China withholding tax (Note b) (26,750) (30,245)
稅項支出 Taxation charge 133,110 133,555

Notes To The Financial Statements

澳門國際銀行 2017 年 年報



財務報表附註
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22財務報表附註

稅項（續）
Taxation (Continued)

10

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

稅前溢利 Profit before taxation 1,483,390 1,297,292
按照澳門所得補充稅稅率計算的稅項 Tax calculated at the above Macao Complementary Tax rate 178,007 155,675
澳門境外不同稅率的稅務影響 Impact of differently taxed profits outside Macau (2,392) -
不需課稅的收入的稅務影響 Tax effect of non-taxable income (14,445) -
不可扣稅之費用的稅務影響 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,078 7,871
以往年度準備補提 Under provision in prior years - 254
雙重徵稅抵免協議 ( 附註 b) Tax credits available under a tax treaty (Note b) (26,750) (30,245)
其他 Others (6,388) -
實際稅項支出 Taxation charge 133,110 133,555

 2017
MOP'000

本年度準備 Current income tax charge for the year 185,404
減 : 本年度雙重徵稅抵免 Less: Tax credits to be claimed in current year (9,489)

已付非澳門本地稅款          Tax recoverable in income tax outside Macau (4,157)
其他稅項 Others 4,135
本期稅項負債 Current tax liabilities 175,893

稅項支出和會計溢利按適用稅率計算的對賬：
The tax on the Bank’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Macao 
Complementary Tax rate applicable to profits of the Bank as follows:

附註 / Note : 

(a)  本年度準備與本期稅項負債對帳表 :
       Reconciliation from current income tax charge for the year to current tax liabilities:

(b)  

Notes To The Financial Statements

本行從國內業務所得須繳付國內相關稅項。根據澳門特別行政區政府與內地簽署的《關於對所得避免雙重徵稅和防止偷漏稅的安排》，本
行於國內繳付之稅項可於應付的澳門所得稅款中抵免。
The Bank has income derived from Mainland China which is subject to Mainland China income tax. According to the “Arrangement 
Between The Macao Special Administrative Region and The Mainland of China For The Avoidance of Double Taxation and The 
Prevention of Fiscal Evasion With Respect To Taxes On Income”, the amount of such Mainland China tax paid is allowed as a credit 
against the Macao Complementary Tax payable by the Bank subject to application and approval by Macao Finance Bureau.
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現金及短期資金
Cash and short term funds

11

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

現金 Cash 584,491 613,551
一個月內到期的銀行同業結存 Balances with banks maturing within one month 12,299,909 3,149,042

12,884,400 3,762,593

存放銀行同業及其他金融機構
Due from banks and other financial institutions

13

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

一個月以上至十二個月內到期的存放同業
及其他金融機構

Due from banks and other financial institutions maturing 
between one month to twelve months

3,644,594 5,167,572

存放本地監管機構之存款
Deposits with local regulatory authority

按有關法例要求，本行需為了保持流動性﹐於澳門金融管理局開立之澳門幣活期賬戶的每週每日結餘不可少於按下述百分率對
上一週所核定且以期間分類之平均基本負債而計算出之總和的 70%：
According to the statutory requirement, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum deposit balance with AMCM for 
liquidity purpose.  The required daily amount of the MOP current deposit balance in each week should not be less 
than 70% of the following percentage of the average of the basic liabilities classified by term and calculated in the 
preceding week:

(a)  即期負債之 3%；
3% on all the liabilities which are repayable on demand;

(b)  除 (a) 之即期負債外﹐三個月以內 ( 含三個月 ) 到期負債之 2%；及
2% on all the liabilities which are repayable within 3 months (3 months inclusive) except for those already counted in (a);

(c)  三個月以上到期負債之 1%。
1% on all the liabilities which are repayable beyond 3 months.

於二零一七年十二月三十一日，本行存放澳門金融管理局的法定最低結存為澳門幣 1,404,082,000 元    ( 二零一六年十二月
三十一日：澳門幣 1,217,220,000 元 )  。
As at 31 December 2017, the amount of minimum statutory deposit balance with AMCM required for the Bank is 
MOP1,404,082,000 (31 December 2016: MOP1,217,220,000).

12

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

於十二月三十一日存放澳門金融管理局之
結餘

Balance with AMCM as at 31 December 2,248,856 2,908,270

Notes To The Financial Statements
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政府債券
Treasury bills

14

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

由澳門金融管理局發行的票據之攤銷成本 -
流動

Treasury bills issued by AMCM, at amortised cost - current 1,394,784 1,294,932

 
一般準備

General 
provision
MOP'000

特定準備
Specific 

provision
MOP'000

合計
Total 

provision 
MOP'000

於二零一六年一月一日的結餘 Balance at 1 January 2016 769,122 54,333 823,455

撇帳貸款 Amount written off - (357) (357)

收回以往年度撇帳貸款 Recoveries of loans and advances written-off in 
previous years - 475 475

本年計提的減值虧損準備 ( 附註 9) Charge to income statement (Note 9) 221,669 50,576 272,245 
於二零一六年十二月三十一日的結餘 Balance at 31 December 2016 990,791 105,027 1,095,818

於二零一七年一月一日的結餘 Balance at 1 January 2017 990,791 105,027 1,095,818
撇帳貸款 Amount written off - (81,392) (81,392)

收回以往年度撇帳貸款
Recoveries of loans and advances written-off in 
previous years

- 338 338

本年計提的減值虧損準備 ( 附註 9) Charge to income statement (Note 9) 92,600 36,182 128,782
於二零一七年十二月三十一日的結餘 Balance at 31 December 2017 1,083,391 60,155 1,143,546

貸款準備金之變動分析如下：
An analysis of the provision for loans and advances is as follows:

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

貸款及墊款 Loans and advances 103,261,963 94,816,463
減：客戶貸款及墊款準備金 Less: Provision for loans and advances to customers (1,143,546) (1,095,818)

102,118,417 93,720,645

流動 Current 48,489,176 61,303,765
非流動 Non-current 53,629,241 32,416,880

102,118,417 93,720,645

客戶貸款及墊款
Loans and advances to customers
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

存款證 Certificates of deposits held 2,130,949 3,860,296

流動 Current 1,646,853 1,429,902
非流動 Non-current 484,096 2,430,394

2,130,949 3,860,296

存款證
Certificates of deposits held

16
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

持作買賣投資 Investments held for trading
上市債務證券 , 攤銷成本 Listed debt securities, at amortised cost 1,276,195 469,755
非上市債務證券 , 攤銷成本 Unlisted debt securities, at amortised cost 1 1
減 : 準備金 ( 附註 A) Less: provision for diminution in value (Note A) (6,826) (1,065)

1,269,370 468,691
持至到期投資 Held-to-maturity investments

非上市債務證券之攤銷成本 Unlisted debt securities, at amortised cost 97,850 97,850
其他投資 Other investments

非上市股票之成本 Unlisted shares, at cost 4,754 4,754
非上市債務證券之攤銷成本 Unlisted debt securities, at amortised cost 31,178,315 15,708,423
其他 Others 1,047,795 -

32,230,864 15,713,177
總計 Total 33,598,084 16,279,718

流動 Current 5,413,085 1,490,714
非流動 Non-current 28,184,999 14,789,004
總計 Total 33,598,084 16,279,718

附註 Note :
(a) 持作買賣投資之市值 (a) Market value of listed investments held for trading

上市債務證券 Listed debt securities 1,271,140 472,315
(b) 投資按發行機構分佈如下 (b) Analysis of investments by issuers

持作買賣投資 Investments held for trading
企業 Corporate entities 1,269,370 468,691

持至到期投資 Held-to-maturity investments
銀行同業及其他金融機構 Banks and other financial institutions 97,850 97,850

其他投資 Other investments
銀行同業及其他金融機構 Banks and other financial institutions 9,168,615 11,859
企業 ( 附註 B) Corporate entities (Note B) 15,412,271 15,701,318
國債及地方政府債 Sovereigns 7,649,978 -

32,230,864 15,713,177

證券投資
Investment in securities

附註 A / Note A :
截至二零一七年十二月三十一日， 因證券投資減值準備確認遞延所得稅資產為澳門幣 819,000 元 ( 二零一六年為澳門幣 128,000 元 )。 
As at 31 December 2017, deferred tax assets of MOP819,000  (2016: MOP128,000) has been recognised on provision for diminution in value 
for investment in securities (Note 21). 

附註 B / Note B :
截至二零一七年十二月三十一日，其他投資的企業證券投資有澳門幣 33.70 億（二零一六年為澳門幣 10.78 億）用於本行的同業負債資金擔保
（附註 24）。
As at 31 December 2017, investment in corporate entities with carrying amount of MOP3,370   million (2016: MOP1,078 million) was 
pledged to a financial institution to secure a loan facility (Note 24).
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

會藉 Club debenture
成本 Cost 3,047 3,047 
累計減值虧損 Accumulated impairment loss (1,502) (1,502)
帳面淨值 Net book amount 1,545 1,545

無形資産
Intangible asset

18
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永久業權土地 永久業權房地産 租約房地産 傢私裝修及設備 電腦設備 汽車 總計

Freehold land Buildings Leasehold 
buildings

Fixtures and 
furniture

Computer 
equipment Motor vehicles Total

MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

原值
Cost
於二零一七年一月一日
At 1 January 2017 13,352 7,993 30,112 102,220 100,743 6,275 260,695

新增
Additions - - - 14,471 23,096 844 38,411

處置
Disposals - - - (327) (5,755) (389) (6,471)

折算差異
Exchange difference - - - 11 149 22 182

於二零一七年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2017 13,352 7,993 30,112 116,375 118,233 6,752 292,817

累計折舊
Accumulated depreciation 
於二零一七年一月一日
At 1 January 2017 - 4,884 12,404 90,732 79,864 5,006 192,890

年度折舊
Charge for the year - 427 689 6,371 15,166 542 23,195

處置
Disposals - - - (223) (3,568) (389) (4,180)

折算差異
Exchange difference - - - - 30 1 31

於二零一七年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2017 - 5,311 13,093 96,880 91,492 5,160 211,936

帳面淨值
Net book value
於二零一七年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2017 13,352 2,682 17,019 19,495 26,741 1,592 80,881

原值
Cost
於二零一六年一月一日
At 1 January 2016 13,352 7,993 30,112 99,908 84,881 5,670 241,916

新增
Additions - - - 2,387 17,273 726 20,386

處置
Disposals - - - (75) (1,411) (121) (1,607)

於二零一六年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2016 13,352 7,993 30,112 102,220 100,743 6,275 260,695

固定資產
Property, plant and equipment

19
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永久業權土地 永久業權房地産 租約房地産 傢私裝修及設備 電腦設備 汽車 總計

Freehold land Buildings Leasehold 
buildings

Fixtures and 
furniture

Computer 
equipment Motor vehicles Total

MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

累計折舊
Accumulated depreciation 
於二零一六年一月一日
At 1 January 2016 - 4,457 11,715 85,757 70,166 4,740 176,835

年度折舊
Charge for the year - 427 689 5,050 11,109 387 17,662

處置
Disposals - - - (75) (1,411) (121) (1,607)

於二零一六年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2016 - 4,884 12,404 90,732 79,864 5,006 192,890

帳面淨值
Net book value
於二零一六年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2016 13,352 3,109 17,708 11,488 20,879 1,269 67,805

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

於澳門按以下方式持有：
- 10至50年的租賃期

In Macao held on: 
-Leases of between 10 to 50 years

47,067 48,538

於一月一日 At 1 January 48,538 50,009
租賃土地權益攤銷支出 Amortisation of interests in leasehold land (1,471) (1,471)
於十二月三十一日 At 31 December 47,067 48,538

租賃土地權益 
Interest in leasehold land

20

本行於租賃土地權益的經營租賃及帳面淨值分析如下：
The Bank’s interest in leasehold land represents operating leases and the net book value is analysed as follows:

Notes To The Financial Statements

固定資產（續）
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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投資及其他資產跌價撥備 貸款及墊款減值準備 加速稅項折舊 稅務損失 合計
Provisions for diminution 

in value for investment 
and other assets

Provisions for loans 
and advances

Accelerated tax 
depreciation Tax losses Total

MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

於二零一五年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2015 554 - (763) - (209)

於損益表確認（附註 10）
Recognised in the income 
statement (Note 10)

(222) 2,839 (73) - 2,544

於二零一六年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2016 332 2,839 (836) - 2,335

於損益表確認 （附註 10）
Recognised in the income 
statement (Note 10)

710 1,842 29 22,963 25,544

於二零一七年十二月三十一日
At 31 December 2017 1,042 4,681 (807) 22,963 27,879

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

於一月一日 At 1 January 2,335 (209)

於損益表確認（附註 10） Deferred taxation credited to income statement (Note 10) 25,544 2,544

於十二月三十一日 At 31 December 27,879 2,335

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

遞延稅項資産： Deferred income tax assets 27,879 2,335

遞延稅項 
Deferred income tax 

21

遞延稅項帳目變動如下：
The movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

遞延稅項資産 /( 負債 )
Deferred income tax assets / (liabilities) recognised:

Notes To The Financial Statements
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

應收帳款 Cheque clearance and account receivable 353,601 271,533 
應收利息 Interests receivable 1,180,650 701,965 
預付費用 Prepayments 21,661 14,533 
存出保證金 Margin deposits paid 22,152 21,738 
可收回中國大陸稅款 Mainland China tax recoverable 25,166 77,391 
其他 Others 8,391 9,272 

1,611,621 1,096,432
 

流動 Current 660,531 639,183 
非流動 Non-current 951,090 457,249 

1,611,621 1,096,432

其他資產
Other assets
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

十二個月內到期的銀行同業及其他金融
機構之存款

Due to banks and other financial institutions maturing within 
twelve months 23,544,466 21,578,062

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

其他投資 ( 附註 17 附註 B) – 流動 Other investments (Note 17-Note B) - current 3,818,710 798,770

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

往來及儲蓄存款 Current and savings deposits 16,391,486 14,460,348
定期存款 Time deposits 104,919,560 81,905,559

121,311,046 96,365,907

流動 Current 116,565,515 95,976,822
非流動 Non-current 4,745,531 389,085

121,311,046 96,365,907

銀行同業及其他金融機構之存款
Due to banks and other financial institutions

賣出回購金融資產
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

客戶存款
Customer deposits

23
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

應付帳款 Accounts payable 193,208 213,562
本票 Cashier orders 77,129 105,415
應付利息 Interests payable 845,613 539,510
應計費用 Expenses accruals 156,127 135,241
保證金 Margin deposits received 7,894 6,760
其他應付款項 Other payables 410,802 45,307

1,690,773 1,045,795

流動 Current 1,195,730 528,630
非流動 Non-current 495,043 517,165

1,690,773 1,045,795

其他負債
Other liabilities

26
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

應付次級債券 Subordinated fixed rate debts 2,811,200 798,250

經澳門金融管理局 (“AMCM”) 批准，本行於 2013 年 10 月發行面值為七億七千五百萬港幣定息次級債券。該債券本金及利息之清償順序在
普通債權之後，而優於本行所有者權益。本行於 2018 年 10 月具有無條件以票面金額贖回之權利。
In October 2013, the Bank issued debt with a face value of HKD 775,000,000 after the approval from AMCM. The debts are subordinated 
debts and its principal and interest rank after the Bank’s normal debts but before the Bank’s share capital in the repayment order. The 
Bank has the option to redeem the debt unconditionally at par value in October 2018. The debt matures in October 2018 if the debt is not 
redeemed at the option of the Bank. 

於 2017 年 12 月，本行發行面值為二億五千萬美元的十年期次級債券。 該票據於 2023 年 6 月 28 日前以固定利率 5.375％計息，如果票據未
在票據重置日被本行執行提前贖回的權力將重設至每年為五年美國國債利率加 3.233％的利率水平。此次級債券在香港聯交所上市。
In December 2017, the Bank issued a 10 year subordinated capital notes with a face value of US$250,000,000. The notes bear interest at a 
fixed rate of 5.375% per annum until 28 June 2023 and reset to the aggregate of five year U.S. Treasury Rate plus a spread of 3.233% per 
annum thereafter if the notes are not redeemed on the coupon reset date at the option of the Bank. The notes are listed on the Hong Kong 
Stock Exchange.

應付債券
Subordinated liabilities

27

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

法定，已發行及已繳足股本 Authorised, issued and fully paid 
2,610,000 普通股股份每股面值澳門幣
1,000 元

2,610,000 Ordinary shares of MOP 1,000 each 2,610,000 2,610,000

股本
Share capital

28
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

擬派股息 Proposed dividend 405,084 349,121

於二零一八年三月二十二日召開之會議，董事會擬派發二零一七年度普通股股息每股約澳門元 155.20 元 ( 二零一六年每股約
澳門元 133.76) ，總額為澳門元 405,083,882 元 ( 二零一六年為澳門元 349,121,173)。此擬派普通股股息，並無於本財務報表
中列作應付股息，惟將於截至二零一八年十二月三十一日止年度列作留存盈利分配。
The directors proposed a dividend of approximately MOP155.20 (2016: MOP133.76) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 
December 2017 amounting to MOP405,083,882 (2016: MOP349,121,173). The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting 
period has not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings 
for the year ending 31 December 2018.

股息
Proposed dividend
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

存放銀行同業及其他金融機構 Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,580,459 608
廈門國際銀行股份有限公司發行之可贖回
存款證

Puttable CDs issued by Xiamen International Bank Co. Ltd. 1,646,853 3,860,296

其他資産 Other assets 9,536 47,196
銀行同業及其他金融機構之存款 Due to banks and other financial institutions (8,727,018) (9,240,656)
客戶存款 Customer deposits (233,249) (404,241)
其他負債 Other liabilities (193,438) (130,276)

與集團公司及關連方之交易
Transactions with group companies and related parties

集團公司包括控股公司及其關聯公司（附註 35）。關連方是指控股公司之股東及其附屬公司。本年度內，本行與集團公司及
關聯公司在日常銀行業務過程中進行了多項交易，其中包括借貸、接受及存放同業存款和往來銀行交易。這些交易是按正常商
業條款進行。
Group companies include the holding companies (note 35) and their subsidiaries. Related parties represent shareholders 
of the holding companies and their subsidiaries. During the year the Bank entered into transactions with the holding 
companies and their subsidiaries in the normal course of its banking business including, inter alia, lending, the acceptance 
and placement of inter-bank deposits and correspondent banking transactions.  

除了本財務報表所披露的交易或結餘外，本行於本年度與集團公司及關連方在雙方商定條件下訂立了下列的重大結餘及交易。
Other than transactions or balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Bank had entered into the 
following transactions and maintained significant balances with the group companies and related parties at mutually 
agreed terms during the year:

30

a. 包括於以下資産負債表帳項爲與集團公司之結餘：
Included in various balance sheet captions are balances with group companies as follows:
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

浮息存款證、存放銀行同業及其他金融機
構之利息收入

Interest income earned on CDs and due from banks and other 
financial institutions 172,071 60,746

客戶存款及同業及其他金融機構存款之利
息支出

Interest expense on customer deposits and due to banks 
and other financial institutions

(259,167) (148,901)

安排費 – 廈門國際銀行股份有限公司發行
之存款證

Arrangement fee - CDs issued by Xiamen International 
Bank Co. Ltd.

11,567 11,995

支付控股公司之管理費 Management fee paid to ultimate holding company (9,270) (9,270)
支付控股公司之房屋租金費用 Rental of premises paid to group companies (1,328) (1,309)

 

b. 年內，本行與集團公司之間的收入及支出如下：
During the year, the Bank earned income and incurred expense on balances with group companies as follows:

Notes To The Financial Statements

與集團公司及關連方之交易（續）
Transactions with group companies and related parties (Continued)
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

客戶存款 Customer deposits (151,954) (30,601) 
客戶存款之利息支出 Interest expense on customer deposits (2,065) (1,770)
其他負債 Other liabilities (1,468) (1,213)
其他資產 Other assets 1,659 1,380
員工股份 ( 附註 ) Share equity contributed by employees (Note) 137,299 137,299

於二零一七年十二月三十一日，本行的客戶貸款及放款中有澳門幣 62,263,832,000 元的客戶貸款（二零一六年：澳門幣
64,106,850,000 元）由廈門國際銀行股份有限公司所開出備用信用證提供擔保。
As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s loans and advances to customers totaling MOP62,263,832,000 (31 December 2016: 
MOP64,106,850,000) was guaranteed by Xiamen International Bank Co. Ltd. in the form of standby letters of credit or letters 
of guarantee.

c. 與關連方之餘額／交易 :
Transactions / balances with related parties:

附註 / Note:
於二零一七年十二月三十一日，員工股份在本行普通股中的佔比為 2.5% ( 二零一六年：2.5%) 。員工股份在所有者權益下的股
本及股本溢價中確認。
As at 31 December 2017, 2.5% (31 December 2016: 2.5%) of the total issued ordinary shares were held by the employees, 
which was recorded under share capital and premium in equity.
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 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

稅前溢利 Profit before taxation 1,483,390 1,297,292

調整： Adjustments for:
- 固定資產折舊 - Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 23,195 17,662
- 租賃土地權益之攤銷 - Amortisation of interests in leasehold land 1,471 1,471
- 股息收入 - Dividend income (1,968) (3,371)
- 處置固定資產淨溢利 - Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (6,886) (5)
- 出售其他投資淨溢利 - Net gain on disposal of investments securities (186,493) (236,465)
- 減值準備金計提增加 - Increase in provisions for bad and doubtful debts 128,782 272,289
- 投資證券（折價）/ 溢價攤銷 - Amortisation of (discount)/ premium on investments (138,592) 146,709
- 外匯差額 - Exchange difference (128,752) (85,670)

營運資産之變動 Changes in working capital
- 原到期日超過三個月的存放同業款項增
加

- Increase in amount due from banks with original 
maturity over three months (208,967) (1,190,003)

- 存放監管機構存款結餘增加 - Increase in minimum statutory deposits with regulatory 
authorities (1,067,112) (283,313)

- 買入返售金融資產增加 - Increase in financial assets purchased under 
agreements to resell (1,210,784) -

- 客戶貸款及放款增加 - Increase in loans and advances to customers (8,526,554) (23,505,775)
- 買賣投資（增加）/ 減少 - (Increase)/ decrease  in investments held for trading (800,678) 161,097
- 其他資産（增加） - (Increase) in other assets (515,253) (222,804)
- 客戶存款增加 - Increase in customer deposits 24,945,139 29,054,322
- 同業及其他金融機構之存款增加 - Increase in due to banks and other financial institutions 1,966,404 3,207,902

- 賣出回購金融資產增加
- Increase in financial assets sold under repurchase 
agreements

3,019,940 200,015

- 其他負債增加 - Increase in other liabilities 662,301 424,674

除稅前營業活動之現金流入
Operating cash flows from operating activities before 
taxation

19,438,583 9,256,027

來自經營活動之現金流包括以下項目： Cash flows from operating activities include
已收利息 Interest received 3,516,909 2,639,664
已付利息 Interest paid (2,135,605) (1,516,135)
  

現金流量表附註
Notes to cash flow statements

31

a. 除稅前溢利與來自除稅前營業活動之現金流入對帳表
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to operating cash flows from operating activities before taxation

Notes To The Financial Statements
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34財務報表附註 Notes To The Financial Statements

b. 現金及現金等價物之明細
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents 

上述現金流量表所指的現金及現金等價物包括下述自購入日期起三個月內到期的項目：
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three 
months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

現金及存放銀行同業之存款 Cash and balances with banks 15,229,939 7,740,162
存放監管機構高於法定最低餘額的結存
( 附註 12)

Deposit with regulatory authorities in excess of minimum 
statutory requirement (Note 12)

846,245 1,691,050

澳門金管局發行原於 3 個月內到期的
非上市金融票據

Treasury bills with original maturity within three months - 99,916

現金及現金等價物 Cash and cash equivalents 16,076,184 9,531,128

現金流量表附註（續）
Notes to cash flow statements (Continued)
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資本承擔
Capital commitments

經營租約承擔
Operating lease commitments

32

33

於十二月三十一日，銀行作爲承租人，根據不可撤銷經營租賃而於未來須支付的最低總租金款項如下：
At 31 December, the Bank had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

土地及房地産
Land and buildings

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

已批准但未簽約 Expenditure authorised but not contracted for 51,150 25,386
已簽合約但未作撥備 Expenditure contracted but not provided for 6,137 1,057

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

1 年內 Not later than 1 year 29,999 23,966
1 年以上但不超過 5 年 Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 73,695 74,991
超過 5 年 Later than 5 years 1,226 3,016

104,920 101,973

Luso International Banking Ltd. Annual Report 2017
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或有負債
Contingent liabilities and commitments

控股公司
Holding company

比較數據
Comparative figures

34

35

36

控股公司爲廈門國際投資有限公司 ( 其持本行股份佔比 49%)，一家於香港註冊成立的公司，它是廈門國際銀行股份有限
公司的附屬公司。廈門國際銀行股份有限公司是一家於廈門註冊成立的公司。
The Bank’s holding company (holding 49% of the total issued ordinary shares of the Bank) is Xiamen International 
Investment Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong. The holding company is a subsidiary of Xiamen 
International Bank Co. Ltd., a company incorporated in Xiamen. 

為與本年列示一致，財務報表之主表及相關附註中的部分比較資料進行了重分類調整。上述重分類調整對本行截至二零一六年
十二月三十一日和二零一七年十二月三十一日的所有者權益及二零一六年度和二零一七年度的利潤均無重大影響。
Certain comparative figures set out in the financial statements and the related notes thereto have been reclassified to 
conform to the current year’s presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on the Bank’s total equity as at both 31 
December 2017 and 2016, or on the Bank’s profit for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

信用承諾
Credit commitments

其他承諾（名義金額）
Other commitments (notional amount)

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

貸款承諾 Loan commitments 62,019,992 83,903,766
開出信用證 Letters of credit issued 2,492,875 2,688,467
擔保書 Guarantees issued 1,745,246 1,092,436
信用承諾合計 Total credit commitments 66,258,113 87,684,669

 2017
MOP'000

2016
MOP'000

遠期合約 Forward contracts 54,215,920 39,598,822
貨幣期權及其他 Currency options and others 110,479 5,135
其他承諾合計 Total other commitments 54,326,399 39,603,957

Notes To The Financial Statements
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分行及網點
BRANCH

分行 
Branch

地址
Address

電話
Telephone

傳真
Fax

澳門 MACAU

總行
Head Office

蘇亞利斯博士大馬路 47 號
Av. Dr. Mario Soares, No. 47 2837 8977 2857 8517

三盞燈分行
Sam Chun Tang Branch

嘉路米耶圓形地 8 號地下
Rotunda Carlos da Maia, No.8, R/C 2852 5048 2852 7231

板樟堂分行
Pun Cheong Tong Branch 

板樟堂街 15 號
Rua S. Domingos No.15 2832 9024 2838 9360

黑沙環分行
Hac Sac Van Branch 

黑沙環祐漢新村第一街 8 號地下
Bairro Iao Hon, Rua Um, No. 8, R/C 2841 2730 2841 3443

保利達分行
Pou Lei Tat Branch

東北大馬路 507、511 號保利達花園地下 AG、AH 座
Avenida do Nordeste No.507、511, Polytec Garden, R/C AG、AH, Macau 2876 0800 2876 0880

氹仔分行
Taipa Branch

氹仔基馬拉斯大馬路 152 至 158 號至尊花城地下 F 舖
Av. de Guimaraes, Nos. 152 e 158, Edif. Supreme Flower City, Loja F, Taipa 2883 2868  2883 7288

建興龍分行
Kin Heng Long Branch

新口岸宋玉生廣場 238 號至 286 號建興龍廣場地下 I 及 J 舖
Nos.238 a 286 da Dr. Carlos d'Assumpcao e Nos.7 a 117 da,
Rua de Roma, Edif. Kin Heng Long Kuong Cheong IR/C, JR/C.

2876 0398 2876 0600

新橋分行
San Kiu Branch

罅些喇提督馬路昌明花園地下 CK，CJ 及 P 舖
Av. do Almirante Lacerda, edif. Cheong Meng Garden, Loja CK, CJ and P, 
R/C.

2821 5582  2821 0481

台山分行
Toi San Branch 

台山巴波沙大馬路新城市商業中心 IN1 及 IO1 舖
Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa Jardins de Cidade, Edif. Cento Com. Loja IN1 
e IO1

2823 3762 2823 2615

紅街市分行
Hung Kai Si Branch 

高士德馬路 126-128 號
Av. Horta e Costa, No. 126-128 2821 0773 2821 0013

新口岸分行
San Hao Ngon Branch 

上海街 185 號澳門中華總商會大廈地下 D 座
Rua de Xangai No.185, Edificio da Associacao Comercial de Macau R/C D 2870 1935 2870 2958

筷子基分行
Fai Chi Kei Branch 

筷子基和樂坊馬路宏開大廈第三座 B,D 地下
Rua do Commandante Joao Belo nos. 182-J. 186 Edif. Wang Hoi Bloco 3, 
B R/C, D R/C

 2859 2540  2859 0766

威翠分行
Wai Chui Branch

氹仔南京街 222 號威翠花園地下 H 座
Na Taipa, Rua de Nam Keng No.222, Vai Chui R/C H, Macau 2883 3835 2883 0735

中國大陸 MAINLAND CHINA 

横琴代表處
Luso International Banking Limited 
(Zhuhai) Hengqin Representative Office 

珠海市橫琴新區十字門中央商務區
珠海橫琴金融產業服務基地 8 號樓 D 區
No.8 D, Hengqin Financial District, Zhuhai Shizimen Central Business 
District, Zhuhai, China.  

0086-
756-2992-506

0086-
756-2992-508

廣州分行
Guangzhou Branch

廣州市天河區珠江新城合景國際金融廣場
International Finance Place, No.8 Huaxia Road, Pearl River New Town, 
Guangzhou, China

020-
2808 9999

020-
2808 9988

36






